

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 25, 2020 • 6:00 p.m.

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Hellyer called the regular meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Mayor Hellyer, Mayor Pro Tempore Scoles, Councilmembers Pellegrino, Drake, Dietrich, Holder, and Keating were in attendance. Others present Town Attorney Crosby; Town Administrator Pieper; and Town Clerk Sheri Medina.

2. INVOCATION; PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,

Invocation: Reverend Ward from the Timberlake Church gave the invocation Pledge of Allegiance: The Mayor led the Pledge of Allegiance

3. PUBLIC HEARING None

4. MOTIONS RELATING TO AGENDA

- A. Councilmember Drake made a motion to add an update on the pier to the agenda.Councilmember Keating seconded. All voted in favor. **MOTION CARRIED**.
- B. Also, Councilmember Drake, with respect to the approved department reorganization, feels the Council has an obligation to the residents, have a job to run the Town, we have a manager to get it done. There are times when communications are not being made between the residents and the Town Administrator. He thinks that the Council should hit the reset button and gather more information from the employees perspective and about the reorganization. He stated that he would like to see that employee back to work on Wednesday morning, also that the Council should be involved with the Town Administrator in any reorganization. We owe that to the residents, to the employees, and to the administration. Councilmember Drake made a motion to hit the reset button on the last decision Council gave the Town Administrator on reorganization. Town Attorney Crosby stated a motion for action is out of order because it is not on the agenda. Councilmember Drake asked how it can be worded to be able to bring that employee back to work. Town Attorney Crosby stated state law requires that the item has to be on the agenda with 24-hour public notice to be able to make a motion for action unless it is an emergency. Councilmember Drake feels this is an emergency. There are a lot of businesses needing answers. There are multi-million-dollar projects being delayed. Town Attorney Crosby stated 2/3 majority of Council would have to agree an emergency exists to add this to the agenda. Councilmember Drake made a motion to amend the agenda accordingly, Councilmember Keating seconded. Councilmember Pellegrino stated some ordinances will need to be reviewed to implement any reorganization, and it will be a long process. Councilmember Drake stated that if that is the case then we should be able to approve this motion since we will time to reconsider the reorganization. Councilmember Keating stated the critical part of the reconsideration is so that the employee can return to work so the operation of the Town and operate effectively and efficiently while the structure of any potential reorganization is evaluated through the multiple readings as Mr. Pellegrino stated. In the meantime, there will be at least another month before this is resolved. I don't think that is acceptable for the Town. Councilmember Pellegrino said there are two separate issues, it is the Administrators discretion as to when Mrs. Morris can be brought back to work. Mayor Hellyer asked for confirmation as to what ordinances would need to be changed. Councilmember Pellegrino acknowledge that needed to be

This agenda is published pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act Section 30-4-80(A) and (E). The public is invited to attend all meetings and events. Page 1 of 8

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

evaluated as to what ordinances would be impacted. Mayor Hellyer, and Councilmembers Drake,
 and Keating voted in favor. Mayor Pro Tempore Scoles, Councilmembers Pellegrino, Holder, and
 Dietrich voted against. **MOTION DENIED**

5657 **5.** MINUTES APPROVAL

76

77

78

79 80

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

103

- 58 January 28, 2020 Regular meeting-
- 59 February 12, 2020 Special meeting
- 60 February 14, 2020 Special Meeting 61

62 Councilmember Keating stated first, it appears we've been given a new version of the January 28th 63 minutes that we've not had an opportunity to review; and second, she feels there is too much liberty 64 being taken to summarize the comments. Also, the minutes do not include Councilmember Keating's 65 name as an attendee. We need to produce quality documents that represent this Town. Councilmember 66 Scoles asked that everyone be a little patient and not be so critical. Our new clerk is doing the best 67 she can. Councilmember Pellegrino stated that the Council should give more feedback to the Clerk so 68 the minutes can be adjusted. Councilmember Keating stated that she has provided feedback in several 69 different ways over the past few months only to have them ignored. These documents, as is, reflect 70 poorly on this Town. Councilmember Drake made a motion to have the Clerk revise the minutes, 71 Councilmember Keating seconded. Mayor Hellyer, and Councilmembers Drake, Keating, and Pellegrino 72 voted in favor. Councilmembers Holder, Dietrich, and Scoles voted against. MOTION CARRIED 73

74 6. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Agenda Items only (3-minutes per speaker)
 75

Mayor Hellyer made a statement to remind people to be respectful, and to inform the council of your opinions, and address them to the Mayor. Anyone out of order and that continues to be out of order, may be asked to leave.

- A. Al Kelley, 1216 N Dogwood Dr, stated that he is being sued by the Ex-Mayor of Surfside Beach. Councilmember Scoles called point of order that Mr. Kelley was using individual names. Mr. Kelly apologized and continued his statements regarding the inappropriateness of the ex-Mayor's interactions with the Town operations. Councilmember Dietrich also called a point of order that this time is for comments need to be directed at the Mayor and relating to the agenda, these topics are more appropriate for the comments section later on the agenda. Mr. Kelley said he thought there were no comments later on the agenda. Mr. Kelly tried to make additional points. Councilmember Scoles called a point of order for comments related to the agenda only. Mr. Kelly left the meeting.
- B. Betty Lowery, 619 4th Ave North, asked about communications and public information. Mrs. Lowery asked what that means? Mayor Hellyer responded that we should be discussing the best method(s) for communication with the residents. Mrs. Lowery stated she is not on Facebook but has read the website and the Town's Facebook page. She found a rant on that page. Can parameters be put on what can be placed on the Town Facebook page? It isn't a free speech issue; we shouldn't provide the medium for this. Second, parking stickers. How do you identify the owner of a golf cart if there is not a sticker? How do you write a ticket? Councilmember Dietrich stated all golf carts have a state sticker, and the owner can be located based on the state sticker.
- C. Mr. Hough Petree, 410 N Myrtle, had a suggestion, often golf carts have multiple town stickers on them. If would be difficult for parking enforcement to determine which of the parking stickers are valid. Make them a different color every year for easier enforcement.

101 **7. COMMUNICATIONS**. 102

A. Employee Awards

104i.Sergent Donald Sliker, Police Department, 15 years. An accommodation was presented by105Mayor Hellyer. Sargent Sliker thanked the Council and the residents and has enjoyed working106at Surfside Beach and feels like family and hopes to continue to serve.

107 108

144

ii. Captain Ted Sacra, Fire Department, ten years. Unable to attend.

109 **8. Finance**. Read by Director King. 110

111 **9. Discussion**:

112 A. Public information - Mayor Hellyer stated Facebook is not the place to be conducting Town 113 business or for us to be involved in as elected officials. What are our alternatives? The Town has 114 a website, a Facebook page, and a newsletter. But these have not been active. There needs to be 115 a better way to communicate. We should consider the hiring of a Public Information Officer. 116 Councilmember Keating suggested that there be a broader perspective considered. We need an 117 overall strategy and vision for the Town on how we want to market the Town, how can we brand 118 the Town. We talk about being the Family Beach, but what exactly are we doing that sets us apart 119 as such. There's a bigger issue with communication other than should we be on Facebook or issue 120 a newsletter. A workshop or even a communication committee may be warranted to be able to 121 discuss these avenues and evaluate the funds available. Funds are being spent that may be spent 122 in a better fashion. A strategy needs to be in place to promote our Town and get more value for 123 the funds that we're spending. Consider this a marketing opportunity, we need to promote our 124 Town in general and not piecemeal. Councilmember Pellegrino stated he agreed, and that he's 125 brought up every year during the budgeting process that there should be a designated person to 126 keep up the website and to do the Facebook page and marketing. Social media is fine for 127 conversation, but official Town information needs to be on the website. We need a person to focus 128 on marketing our Town through the website. This item needs to be discussed during the budget 129 process. Mayor Hellyer asked how do we do that because the information needs to get out to the 130 residents. Councilmember Dietrich asked that his personal life be left to him, and the rest of council 131 and employees, and allow the Council to do the job that needs to be done to better the Town. 132 Councilmember Drake stated there might be a person in Town that may want to volunteer to 133 promote Surfside Beach. We can use the experience of our Town residents for these purposes. 134 Visitors come here and fall in love this with little town. We are fortunate to live here. The Town 135 is spending almost \$200,000 a year with the Chamber, and maybe some of that money can be 136 spent better. Councilmember Holder stated he feels everyone has made many great comments, 137 and a workshop is to be able to have better communication. We need to make some short-term 138 improvement and then look at the longer term. We need to work harder to have a plan. 139 Councilmember Scoles also feels there should be better communication with the residents. She 140 said that she has spoken to a few visitors that would not come back, and they mentioned the 141 negative comments found online. She directed them to the Town website to get better information. 142 Councilmember Scoles agrees that a workshop would be advantageous. The Town Administrator 143 will set up a workshop.

145 B. **Pier update** – Mr. Pieper said the plan revisions are complete. The Planning Department has 146 approved them. The bid specs will be done by February 29 and submitted to the Town. Council 147 can update the residents on the lease agreement negotiations. Mayor Hellyer confirmed that Collins 148 Engineering will be issuing the bids, not the Town. At that point, the Council can set a date to put 149 the bids out. Mayor Hellyer asked why the distribution of the bids needs to wait for conclusion of 150 the lease negotiations. Town Administrator Pieper stated that this had been discussed and that 151 we cannot hold the bids once published waiting for the negotiations to be completed. The Town 152 Administrator still maintains that the lease negotiations need to be completed before issuance of 153 the bid packages. Councilmember Keating asked as to when the bid packets will be going out. Mr. 154 Pieper stated as soon as Council sets a date. Councilmember Drake said himself, Councilmember 155 Pellegrino and the Mayor have been in negotiations with The Atlantic Restaurant Group (ARG). The 156 talks are going well. There have been two meetings. The next meeting will be on Monday. 157 Councilmember Scoles asked when Council could receive an update from the meetings with ARG. 158 Councilmember Drake reiterated that the distribution of the bid packages need not wait for the 159 lease negotiations. Councilmember Drake said an update can be given to the Council as soon as 160 Tuesday. Councilmember Dietrich thanked all Councilmembers with the work with negotiations,

but he doesn't agree to continue these negotiations. Councilmember Dietrich feels we should sever the relationship. Councilmember Drake stated the relationship seems to have changed and the talks with Mr. Howard are going well. Councilmember Keating said there are two options - to breach the agreement or consider continued negotiations, a lot of consideration needs to go into the outcome with the Atlantic Restaurant Group. We need to consider what is right for the Town. With all the other expenses associated with this project, are we prepared to spend additional \$2 -\$3M to breach this agreement. With negotiations going well, hopefully, an agreement will be reached, which is in the best interest of everyone involved.

10. BUSINESS

A. Second Reading of Ordinance #20 – 0908 – An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 9 MOTOR VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC. Councilmember Pellegrino stated this is the second reading to change Ordinance #20-0908, to change the designation on Yaupon Drive, making it open parking. Councilmember Keating discussed the content of the Ordinance, there are some copy/paste issues, and the WHEREAS clauses need to better reflect why these amendments are being put forward. Mrs. Keating supports the Ordinances, yet they need to be revised before signature. Councilmember Scoles asked the Town Attorney for clarification.Town Attorney Crosby stated, whereas' are just recitals, and they can be changed. Councilmember Drake asked the Town Attorney to pencil in these corrections and simplifications, this is confusing and need to be simplified. The Town Attorney indicated that the recitals are not codified so they can say whatever Council determines. Councilmember Pellegrino made a motion to adopt the second reading of Ordinance #20-0908 to amend section 9-16(f). Councilmember Scoles seconded. All voted in favor. MOTION CARRIED.

B. Second Reading of Ordinance #20 – 0912 An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 4, BUSINESS LICENSES, PERMITS. Director King stated the second reading of this Ordinance is to make updates to bring the Town into compliance as recommended by the MASC. Councilmember Keating moved to adopt the Second reading of Ordinance #20-0908 predicated on the attachments to be included with the final document. Councilmember Dietrich seconded. All voted in favor. MOTION CARRIED

C. Second Reading of Ordinance #20 - 0914 An Ordinance to Amend-Chapter 14 [FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION CODE] SECTION 14-17(5) REGARDING GAS CONTAINERS. Councilmember Scoles stated at the first reading she had asked questions concerning the strapping. Specifics on strapping was provided by Director Morris before the last meeting but has not been added to the Ordinance. Also, Councilmember Scoles asked would this change affect the Town's CRS rating? The answer she received from Director Morris was not definitive. She feels this is unacceptable. Councilmember Pellegrino stated that he asked this guestion at the first meeting and it was confirmed that with the appropriate anchoring and strapping that is already in the fire code that the CRS would not be affected. Councilmember Drake further explained the strapping requirements are stipulated elsewhere and would not be superseded by the ordinance. Councilmember Scoles required these stipulations be restated in this ordinance. Councilmember Dietrich concurred. Town Attorney Crosby stated the information could be added to the Ordinance before the vote and incorporated into the motion. Councilmember Drake asked to see the amended language to assure that the language is not something unique to only Surfside Beach. Councilmember Scoles moved to adopt the Second reading of Ordinance #20-0914 as amended. Councilmember Dietrich seconded. Mayor Hellyer and Councilmembers Dietrich, Drake, Holder, Pellegrino, and Scoles voted in favor. Councilmember Keating voted against. MOTION CARRIED. Councilmember Keating made a statement that it is clear that a few councilmembers have information that the rest did not, nor have we had a chance to review such additional information. We cannot allow this to happen.

214 D. Second Reading of Ordinance #20 - 0915 An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 2, 215 ADMINISTRATION TO ADDRESS APPEARANCE OF CITIZENS AND REGULAR MEETING 216 **TIMES**. Councilmember Drake moved to adopt the Second reading of Ordinance #20-0915 to give 217 back the residents their voice. Councilmember Keating seconded. Councilmember Keating spoke 218 again about the inappropriate recitals in this Ordinance, and quality documentation. The entire 219 Ordinance should be reviewed at another meeting. Councilmember Drake appealed to the Town 220 Administrator to fix these things. Councilmember Drake made a motion to accept the amendment, 221 Councilmember Keating seconded. Mayor Hellyer and Councilmembers Dietrich, Drake, Holder, 222 Keating, and Pellegrino voted in favor. Councilmember Scoles voted against. MOTION CARRIED. 223 Town Attorney Crosby stipulated that the original motion to accept the second reading of the 224 ordinance needs to be voted, since the first vote was only on the amendment. Mayor Hellyer and 225 Councilmembers Drake, Holder, and Keating voted in favor. Councilmembers Scoles and Dietrich 226 voted against. MOTION CARRIED. 227

E. Appointment of Certified Flood Plain Manager

229 230 Councilmember Dietrich moved to appoint Mitch Combs as Flood Plain Manager. Councilmember 231 Pellegrino seconded. Councilmember Dietrich stated there is an employee in the Town who is 232 certified beyond just Flood Plain management since 1995, and has the documentation in front of 233 him. The Town needs to move this along; someone needs to be in place. Councilmember Drake 234 asked to have the information on the appointee that Councilmember Dietrich had before the 235 meeting. Councilmember Scoles stated the Mayor had this information and this was a previous 236 conversation between the Mayor, the Town Administrator, and herself. Councilmember Drake said 237 all information should be submitted to all Councilmembers before having to take a vote. We've 238 seen this issue before - every single package needs to be the same. Councilmember Scoles 239 stipulated that the individuals of Council need to do their own homework and get whatever 240 information they need on the agenda items. The Town Administrator stated that personnel 241 information would not be included in the packaged and that Mr. Dietrich requested this information 242 late that day. Councilmember Drake stressed that any item could wait if all the councilmembers 243 did not have the same information. We should not expect people the vote on items for which they 244 don't have the same information. Councilmember Keating said she recommends that this should 245 be tabled until further research is done. Also, to find out precisely what the reorganization looks 246 like. This is just another thing that appears to be snuck through. We need to see how this fits 247 within the new reorganization before making these reappointments. Councilmember Pellegrino 248 stated that there is always information not included in the packets and we have to go dig for 249 The Town Administrator explained in detail in executive session what the clarifications. 250 restructuring would consist of, Council has an understanding of what it will look like. It is the 251 responsibility of the Councilmember to reach out and research data. Councilmember Scoles asked 252 that this be moved forward. Mayor Hellyer made a statement that he expressed his desire to have 253 the E-district reviewed and we need that to move on. All of a sudden, everything turns, Planning 254 & Zoning is gone, some of use are left out of the loop, and now things are being done without 255 transparency, and feels this is just not fair. Councilmembers Dietrich, Holder, Pellegrino, and Scoles 256 voted in favor. Mayor Hellyer and Councilmembers Drake, and Keating voted against. MOTION 257 CARRIED. 258

11. RESOLUTIONS - NONE 260

228

12. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Town Services or Business Conducted (3 minutes per speaker) 262

A. Patricia Magliette, 104 Harbor Lights Drive, Ralph Magliette, sat on this board. Every week he would review his packet thoroughly. Every councilmember and the mayor are to have the same information in that packet. He also did follow up with questions. It is unfair for someone to have to vote if all information is not provided. The process is that the Mayor and Council directed the town manager, not the other way around. The packets were not complete tonight. We have bad 268memories of the 22 amendments that were not in the packets. That jeopardized our flood269insurance. This Council, our elected officials, is to work for the residents, and you tell the Town270Administration what we want. We could have used Ms. Morris here tonight because she is the271Flood Plain expert.

- 272B. Bernie Wharton, 21 S Myrtle Drive, If you run for public office, your background and personal life273then becomes public. If you don't like that, you should get out of office. Also, what is the benefit274of restructuring? What is the cost avoidance? That is what we need to know before changes are275made.
- C. Al Lauer, 124 Harbor Lights Drive. There were several Ordinances up for discussion that should have gone to the Planning Commission before presented to Council. Now the Planning Director is suspended. That is a mistake. She is very knowledgeable of all of our ordinances, and she's been absent in this process. These things going on behind closed door, the fact the everybody does not have the same information, is shameful. We're not getting transparency right now, and it's clear who is working against it. The residents deserve to hear the truth.
 D. Betty Lowery, 619 4th Ave North, Please, speak to DOT about installing signs stating not golf carts

283

284

285

286

287

288

289

290

291

292

293

294

295

309

310

311

312

315

316

317

318

319

320

321

- D. Betty Lowery, 619 4th Ave North, Please, speak to DOT about installing signs stating not golf carts on Highway 17. It is very dangerous and state law. The Town needs to delete the Facebook account, or we need a Facebook manager to determine what should be posted.
- E. Tabitha Mull, 413 13th Ave North, Chairwoman for KSBB, Invited everyone to come out to the festival (BBQ Festival), March 14. It would be great to see all of the Council to attend. KSBB will start up the yard of the month soon. In May, the Beach Sweep will start. Join KSBB Facebook page.
- F. Diana Taylor,715 7th Ave North, the speed limit between Bypass 17 and Business 17 on Glenns Bay Road is 30 mph. The speed limit on the road by my house of 30 mph. Do they compare? There is only one stop light to access to the post office, and part of the frontage road has been closed since the road construction. As a result, people are cutting through parking lots. How does any of this make sense?
- G. Dean Sizemore, The bid packets are due on February 29th. Are we open on Saturday to receive them?
- 296HTerry Lauer,124 Harbor Lights Blvd, I agree with what Mayor Hellyer said. The residents voted on297what was stated during your campaign that you would be transparent. Tonight you have proven298yourselves wrong 4 of you have proved yourselves wrong. Transparency is when everyone has299the same thing. I'm disappointed in the vote tonight. The residents deserve better. Think about300what you are doing.
- I. Lynn Manchester, 1022 N Ocean Blvd. What has happened to the Planning & Zoning Director is wrong. The Town Attorney interrupted to say personnel matters are out of order in these comments. Town Administrator also restated that he did what the Council had voted on to restructure. Ms. Manchester continues that it's just sad that these permits are being pushed through. The Planning & Zoning Director saved the residents with the E District. The Council voted for Mr. Combs without all the information, you didn't have the same information as Councilmember Dietrich had that's scary.
 Name Unidentified, resident and taxpayer residing at 722 7th Ave North, the municode does not
 - J. Name Unidentified, resident and taxpayer residing at 722 7th Ave North, the municode does not require that I state may name, Only has to give address. It also does not say that I have to only address the Mayor. There are now 2 Flood Plain Managers in this Town. John Adair is a Flood Plain Manager. Thank you for what you're doing, Council, you are doing a good job.

313 **13. TOWN COUNCIL DISCUSSION AND/OR COMMENTS** (3 minutes per speaker) 314

- A. Councilmember Scoles, Thank you to all residents for coming out. I want to state that there was not any other information in my packet that everyone else did not have. The information Director Morris submitted to me before the meeting was information that she had worked on and that she was going to include the ordinance. It was not included. Have a good evening.
- B. Councilmember Holder, Tonight has been a long night with a lot of emotions. Happy that Council is going to have a workshop to discuss communication. The training in Columbia showed me that our Town is behind. Thank you to everyone for coming.

- 322 C. Councilmember Keating, I would like to see a couple things placed on the agenda for March 10, 323 2020, meeting, on January 28th we deferred an ordinance amendment for Chapter 17 to a 324 workshop, I would like to see the totality of Chapter 17 to be reviewed. This way, all necessary 325 changes can be made. Also, Chapter 2 needs to be on the agenda so that revisions can be made, 326 whether or not as a workshop. Also, I would like to see monthly department report outs back on 327 the agenda. They can be split between the two meetings per month. Communication needs to 328 improve. If Facebook communicates with most residents – so bit it – it is 2020. We need to get 329 our newsletter re-established. We need another workshop for the bigger strategic vision for this 330 Town. There are probably residents who would be interested in helping out. Thank you for coming 331 out, and I appreciate the comments. 332
 - D. Councilmember Drake, Thank you to everyone for coming out and being patient with us. For the Family Beach we have a lot of work to do. We can do better. Everyone needs the same information to make decisions. The E District needs to go back to the Planning Commission. We need to be up front to conduct our business. I would like to see the Town grow. We need to get our information out. Facebook is out there; we need to accept it. Let's get the positive information out there to overwhelm any negative comments. I look forward to going to the BBQ festival. Thanks to everyone for coming out.
- 338 339 E. Councilman Pellegrino, It is nice to see everyone interested in our Town. Flood Plain Manager, you 340 all saw that on the agenda, we all knew it was Mr. Combs that we were looking to appoint. I did 341 not have the information, but I made calls and did the research. You have to find the information 342 for yourself. Everyone is blaming the administrator, but there was a 7-0 vote to restructure. He is 343 not the person to blame. Council is making the decisions. I represent all taxpayers, residents, 344 second homeowners, businesses, and tourists not just permanent residents. I take all the 345 information and make the decision that is best for the Town. Thank you for the input, I appreciate 346 all input. Have a great night. 347
 - F. Councilmember Dietrich, asked Chief Hofmann to stand. I have the most utmost respect for you and the department for everything you have done. You did what you could for me, I have no recollection of what happened. The police had no information. Thank you to Mr. Pieper and Mrs. King for everything. We do the best we can. Mr. Hucks, if want to play with me again I suggest you call me.
 - G. Mayor Hellyer, I am the mayor and I've been elected to represent the residents. That's what I am going to do. I will work aggressively to get things done for the residents of Surfside Beach and their best interests. Thank you to everyone for coming out.

355 356 **14. EXECUTIVE SESSION**: None 357

358 **15. ADJOURNMENT** 359

Councilmember Keating moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:06 p.m. Councilmember Drake second. All
 voted in favor. MOTION CARRIED

- 362
- 363

333

334

335

336

337

348

349

350

351

352

353

354

364	Approved: Surfside I	Beach Town Council
365		
366		
367	Rob	ert Hellyer, Mayor
368		
369		
370	David L. Pellegrino, Town Council	Bruce H. Dietrich, Town Council
371 372		
373	Cindy Keating, Town Council	Michael Drake, Town Council
374	, C.	
375		
376	Debbie Scoles, Mayor Pro Tempore	Paul Holder, Town Council
377		
378		
379	Sheri L Medina	
380	Town Clerk	
381		
382		
383 384		mary minutes of the meeting that was digitally recorded, ot. Appointments to hear recordings may be made with the
385		ven to you, provided you bring a new, unopened flash drive.
386		
387	In accordance with FOIA §30-4-80(A) and (E), meeting notice and the agenda were distributed to local	
388	media and interested parties via the Town's email subscription list. The agenda was posted on the entry	
389	door at Town Council Chambers. The meeting notice was also published on the town website at	

390 www.surfsidebeach.org and the Town's LED marquee.